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CHAIR ANDERSON: .. . (gavel) . .. Aloha, the meeting of the Water Resources Committee of
February 26 ... am I right? . .is convened.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I'm sorry, folks, for the delay. We're 20 minutes late in starting this
meeting because we had a Special Council meeting that ran overtime. So, I'm just
convening this meeting so that we can let the public know, who may be watching this,
that we're still setting up for our Committee meeting. I'm going to call a recess at the
discretion of the Chair to allow Staff to get set up. With no objections, this Committee is
in recess ... (gavel) . ..
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RECESS:

9:21 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:29 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: ... (gavel). .. Good morning, Members. Thank you all for being here.
My apologies for the delay, the half-hour delay in getting this meeting going. We had a
Special Council meeting this morning that ran overtime.
With us this morning we have Members Joe Pontanilla, Gladys Baisa, Danny Mateo.
Thank you, Members, for being here. Member Mike Victorino will be joining us shortly,
hopefully, if the dentist doesn't do him in.
Okay, on our agenda are the Water Supply Rules. Oh, I'm sorry, with us from the
Department of Water Supply is Deputy Director Eric Yamashige; Water Supply Director
Jeffrey Eng; Corporation Counse1...good morning ... Corporation Counsel, Deputy
Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi, Jr.; and from our Staffwe have Analyst Kim Willenbrink
and Secretary Clarita Balala. Thank you all for being in attendance this morning.
On our agenda this morning we have one item, the Water Supply Rules. Again, we'll be
trudging through them. We have no non-members in attendance this morning. Those
who would like to attend, I think, have a right to be here. So, if they want to attend,
please join us. This morning we have two testifiers, Dawn Marie Silva and Ginny
Parsons. Because we only have two, two members from the audience who would like to
participate, I'm going to allow them four minutes to testify and another minute to
conclude. So, our first testifier is Dawn Marie Silva and she'll be followed by Ginny
Parsons.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. SILVA: Aloha, kakou. My name is Dawn Silva. I'm a resident of Haiku, Maui, and these
are my issues. I'm requesting that my property at 937 Kokomo Road, Haiku, TMK
2-7-11-031, be provided a water meter. But first I want to provide a little background of
my situation.
ECM was contracted by my parents, Walter and Catherine Silva, in, in 1989 to subdivide
family land into two R-2 lots. They completed the job in 1991, but failed to inform us
that we needed to apply for a water meter. All of this time, my family has been under the
assumption that we have a water meter. We were living in San Jose, California up until
1995 when my parents decided to move back home to Maui. At this present time, I have
a 20-foot lateral to my property from the main line that is probably storing bacteria in it
and might also be filtering to my neighbor's waterline.
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Alvin Fukunaga, Director of the Department of Public Works, provided a letter on
August 12, 1989, that stated preliminary approval is hereby granted to the above plat.
The requirements of the Department of Water is install the service laterals as shown on
the preliminary plat, pay a storage assessment of $100. These requirements were met in a
timely manner and water usage is already being configured into the Up country area. At
that time, no one at the Department of Water Supply informed my parents to apply for a
water meter while installing the laterals.
A notice was sent out by the Department of Water Supply via The Maui News stating
effective October 4, 2002, all Up country residents must apply for a S/8-inch meter within
a 60-day period. This notification was insufficient. Why couldn't the DWS mail out the
notices to all the residents with laterals Up country? This would have been sufficient
enough. I would have then received the notification, and I could have responded to the
notice by applying for a water meter.
My parents transferred the property to me in March of 2006. I had planned to build a
house on the lot. When the excavator came to my property he asked me to contact the
Department of Water Supply engineers so that I could move the water meter box, because
it was placed in the middle of my driveway. When I called the Department, I was
informed that I had no meter - only laterals. It had appeared that ECM did not finish the
work that my parents hired them to do, provide water to our family's subdivision.
F or the past 15 years my parents and then myself believed that water meters were on the
property. We have been paying property taxes for improvements which are substantially
higher than it would be if the lot had no meter. Joy Makua at the Property Tax Office
stated I have to provide a letter from DWS to her office to prove that I don't have water
meters in order for her Department to adjust my property taxes. She also stated that I will
not be entitled to any rebates from the Property Tax Office. Is it four minutes already?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Is it four minutes?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Go ahead, you have another minute.
MS. SILVA: Okay. My property taxes right now is $1,677 per year. Since I can't build a home
on my property I don't have a water meter. I went to the Department of Water Supply
and saw Jeff Eng on January lOth, and asked to be seen for a meeting with the Board of
Water Supply. He told me that I had to provide a letter to his office to request to be seen.
Mr. Eng's office letter on January 1ih, via certified mail DWS, wrote their letter
January 19, 2007, which was not received until the 26th . I pretty much was denied access
to the Board of Water, not only in January, but the February meeting, and I was not
informed of my rights that I could testify there. And I also have a letter from Gaye, the
secretary.
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I have here pictures of my water meter boxes that would show you why we were under
the impression that we had meters. I also have here ECM's work and on this work it
shows a water meter. So, that's why my parents were under the assumption that we had a
water meter. Now, without this my fiance and I won't be able to build a home on our
land and from there I don't know what we'll do. Maui is our home. We don't want to
leave. We really don't want profit from this land. We just want a place where we, and
our children, and our grandchildren can live. It's only a quarter-acre lot. If! have to put
up a water tank, we won't have room for a house. So, that's my testimony. And I want
to thank you folks for hearing me today, and I want to thank you, Ms. Anderson, for
chairing this committee. It's very important to us here on Maui. And mahalo nui.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Wait. Wait. Thanks, Ms. Silva. Members, any questions? I have a
question or two. If. .. well, first, on your testimony, Ms. Silva, you were told that you,
that you had been paying property taxes for improved property. And it's just a lot, right?
MS. SILVA: There's nothing on my lot, Ms. Anderson. My uncle was blind, and we allowed
him to raise cattle there for years. My parents asked me not to build until my uncle
passed away. He was a cowboy for years, and because he gave us this property I
respected him and waited. It appears I waited too long, because if I had went and applied
for a permit prior to 2002 I would have been able to apply for a water meter, yeah.
Another thing I'd like to tell you is we are 1,114 on that list. My fiance did the math.
We've only moved up eight spots in one year. If this continues, my great-grandchildren
probably will be able to build there, maybe. I mean my grandchildren are already born.
Eighty years from now they're going to be too old.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Now, let me get this straight.
Department ... the Board of Water Supply's agenda.

You requested to be put on the

MS. SILVA: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And you were denied that.
MS. SILVA: Right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Have you since been given the opportunity to be placed on their, on their
next agenda?
MS. SILVA: We're going upstairs after this to find out if we'll be on the March agenda. We're
going to go talk to Gaye personally. I came and talked to Jeff Eng personally, and he, he
was gracious enough to see me. It was only his third day of work. I asked to go speak to
the head of the Board. He was too busy. So, I sent certified letters to them starting
January 10. I didn't receive a letter back from Jeff Eng's denial until three weeks later. I
sent another letter out that very same day to Ken Okamura. They took another three
weeks to deny me. So, two meetings have passed.
-4-

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 26, 2007

We went anyways. We went anyways to give testimony. I'm hoping that they'll see me
in the March meeting, because the longer we wait ... you know, I'm paying rent, yeah,
and ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, who denied you? Have you requested to have a meter put in?
MS . SILVA: Yes. Jeff Eng denied me. I saw Alvin [sic ] Nakamura, and I saw Herb Chang, and
I showed them, I showed them my blueprints.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MS. SILVA: And like I said if you're a lay person and you're not an engineer, you would think
there was a water meter on these blueprints. It was, it was a big mistake on behalf of
ECM and my parents ... Doug Gomes. I did ask Doug Gomes, and I did ask Hilton, who
owns ECM to help me with this matter, and they said they would, but since then they
haven't returned my calls.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Does, do you parents have a copy of the contract they had with ECM?
MS. SILVA: Oh, yeah, we have all of our paperwork from ECM. I don't have it with me today,
but I'm fortunate enough that my mother kept good records. ECM says that they don't
have any of our records. They said that they have gotten rid of everything from 1995
back. So ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Because the way this reads to me it looks like, that you paid to have the
water meter installed, but ...
MS . SILVA: We paid $100 storage fee to the Water Department. You know, that's another
issue too. The water meter has gone up so much in cost, yeah, and I don't mind paying
the cost. And I can understand, I can understand the Department's situation with there
being such a water shortage, but I feel like, I feel because the Department of Public
Works passed our subdivision, I feel that we're already in that figuration. You know
what I mean? We're already in that equation of having water. So ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. I want to talk to you about this further, but we're not going to do
it in public testimony.
MS. SILVA: All right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: The letter that you provided to my office last Friday-MS. SILVA: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: --I will be doc-transing it to the Committee so when we start talking
about this hopefully we can address your concern before we address it in the Rules. But I
do want this on the record for everyone to see the situation that you're dealing with.
MS. SILVA: I gave, I gave a copy to each office.
CHAIR ANDERSON: You did this morning?
MS. SILVA: No.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, last week.
MS. SILVA: On Thursday, yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Well, there's so much paperwork that comes into our, our offices.
So ...
MS. SILVA: I understand. I saw that, yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, what I'll do is I'll make sure this gets in our Committee binders in
the proper place.
MS. SILVA: Can I provide you a copy ofthis-CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes, please.
MS. SILVA: --for your records? All right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions? Ms. Silva, Ms. Baisa has a question.
MS. SILVA: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Madam Chair. Mrs. Silva, thank you very much,
very much for being here this morning. I am, you know, of course concerned to hear
your story, but I'm very glad that you came, because we are discussing the Water Rules-MS. SILVA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --we're looking at many things, we have a new Water Director,
and we know that we have lots of issues.
MS. SILVA: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But your story puts a name and a face on the, on the situations
that we're looking at. And please know that I have great empathy for you, because I have
a similar situation of improved residential property that I cannot get a water meter for.
MS. SILVA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And I suspect that there are many more people. So, please be
aware that, you know, we will pay attention to your being here today, and I know that our
Chair and that the Water Director will try very hard to do the right thing. Thank you very
much.
MS. SILVA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Silva, you, you have nothing in writing from the Department
denying you the meter?
MS. SILVA: Yeah, I do actually. I have Mr. Eng's letter.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So ...
MS . SILVA: You want a copy of that?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, I think that would be good.
MS. SILVA: All right.
CHAIR ANDERSON: It, it would also be good, I guess, for you to understand that you have a
right to appeal the Director's decision.
MS. SILVA: I do?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes, you do. And the body to hear your appeal is the Board of Water
Supply.
MS. SILVA: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, I would hope and be very upset if you were not allowed on their next
agenda since you were denied twice.
MS. SILVA: I'll go upstairs and ask Gaye if we, we are there. I also have the denial letter from
Gaye here, and then Jeffs letter here. Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Is that the January 19th letter?
MS. SILVA: Yes.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. We already have that one then.
MS. SILVA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. SILVA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. SILVA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: If, if possible could you also submit the copy of that contract
with ECM that was done just so we can take a look at-MS. SILVA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --the scope of responsibilities to actually see, you know, like
who really dropped the ball.
MS. SILVA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Because if your parents contracted them to get the job done,
and they did not, then we need to take a look at who really is at fault in dropping the ball,
because as, as a contractee to you guys, they should have informed you guys of the total
process and where the scope of their worked stopped.
MS. SILVA: That's what we thought.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And if they had not, then I'd like to, to see the agreement so we
can actually take a look at your scope.
MS. SILVA: Okay. I'll get that to you also.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
MS. SILVA: All right. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. I think that's a great suggestion. My apologies
to you, Mrs. Silva, or Ms. Silva, she's engaged.
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MS. SILVA: Yeah, I'm engaged.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Miss?
MS. SILVA: Ms. No, that's okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And we will do what we can to help you.
MS. SILVA: I appreciate it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: We appreciate you coming.
MS. SILVA: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any other questions? Okay. Thank you very much. Members, I think,
you know, this is something we need ... another thing that this just brings up is all these
laterals that are dead-ends in the system. I think that's something we need to really look
at. If there's a lateral, it should be open at the, at the end of it. Ms. Parsons.
MS. PARSONS: Thank you, Madam Chair. Good morning, Members. Nice to see you all on
this Committee this year. I'm here in support of the Silva's. We, we did have them
testify at the Board meeting, and I just wanted to clarify a point that maybe we need to
have in, in writing that Mr. Kushi informed the Board that we are not a body to hear
appeals at this point only to make recommendations and might not be sufficient in a court
action.
The Board of Water Supply put a rule in effect in October of 2002, and I've been on the
record for several years that I didn't feel that the 60-day rule was sufficient. I mean I
would have expected a letter would have gone out to anyone or any subdivision that had
laterals pending, and in addition to The Maui News. And maybe I assumed that that
would have been a process that we did, and it wasn't. And I think we probably need to
look into the legalities of whether or not that 60-day rule is sufficient.
And I, I know it may open up a can of worms, but people like the Silva's that are trying
to do family subdivisions have these 20-foot laterals and like you suggested, Madam
Chair, they're filled with bacteria. There's no meter on there to open up a valve and flush
it out. I mean it's, it's just a stagnant line of water that grows back and forth, and will
grow into the neighbor's, and into the distribution system, and affect our quality of water
altogether.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Parsons, if you don't mind, my apologies for interrupting you, and
I'll give you extra time. If you could, you know, maybe some of our new Members don't
know what the 60-day rule is and people who are listening don't know what that is. So, if
you could kind of give a brief explanation, because I, I'm anticipating the rest of your
testimony is going to be about this rule. Just so people are aware what you're talking
about could you give us just a brief explanation? As a Board member I'm sure you're
aware of it.
MS. PARSONS: We were, we were, what we did was we put a rule together that gave 60, that
gave the residents 60 days. Anyone who was, who had a lateral pending had the
capability of, it was, had construction and capability of taking a meter to come forth and
take a meter. Go order a meter. Put a meter in. And it was a rule that I, I guess must
have gone through, I was very new at that point, must have gone through Council and
was approved.
And we put a notice in the paper for 60 days during that period and gave, I mean, a notice
that gave 60 days for anyone to come forward who could put the meter in and, and be
able to get a meter before we just shut it off and went right directly to the meter list or
allowed other people on the meter list to be ahead of those, those with laterals. So, I
guess that kind of explains it. It, it was just basically opening the door for some, for
those that were prepared for a meter to come and be able to, to take one.
Now, let's go look at a subdivision that didn't sell all the lots at that point, they still had
laterals. And I think that's where you need to look at a new rule that says that if you're
going to put a subdivision in, and you're going to put waterlines and water laterals, then
you should have to be prepared to put a meter in. That's from a health and safety
standpoint. If you can't, if you can't provide water, then you can't provide, you
shouldn't be, you shouldn't be allowed to provide the laterals and hook into our main.
In the case of the Silva's they thought they had, they had a meter. And if you look at that
picture, you certainly figure that they did. I mean it, it, it's almost tomb looking. It, it
looks like any meter anyplace else. If I were buying that piece of property, and unless I
took the, you know, lids off to look in there, I would have assumed there was a meter too.
So ... and I'm sure that may be, that may be the case in a lot of these parcels.
I think from a, and I go back to water quality again. You all know this from the, the issue
of the bacteria, and we're using surface water. And I don't know if you all know it, but
Maui ... since some of you are new Members, Maui uses 82 percent of the entire State's
surface water for our potable water. That's for our drinking water and our cooking water.
The other counties use primarily ground water which it has its natural filtration. Ours is
open to the reservoirs. Ours is open to the elements. It's a lot more unstable because of
the pathogens, and the bacteria, and the organic matter.
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So, we have to be a little bit, we have to have a lot more concern when it comes to
construction and mandating how we allow waterlines to be put in. And that's primarily
my testimony this morning.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Parsons. Any questions from Members? You know, I
have a question. You said that Deputy Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi told, told you folks
at the last Board meeting that you're, you're not the body to hear appeals?
MS. PARSONS: Yes, he did.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, we'll have to follow up on that, because this body adopted an
ordinance last term allowing you to hear the appeal.
MS. PARSONS: You might ask Mr. Kushi if, if that takes any, any precedent. We, as we, we
discussed this and there was a concern within the board, because where do these folks
go? I mean if the Director says no what alternatives do they have? And is the court
going to bounce it back to us or back to the County and say it's insufficient, or are they
going to rule in favor of the defendant, or the plaintiff, excuse me, and rule in, you know,
in the favor of the, the plaintiff.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. We will address that.
MS. PARSONS: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you very much for being here, Ms. Parsons. Any other questions?
Okay. Thank you so much.
MS. PARSONS: Thank you .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR ANDERSON: I think that since it was brought up in testimony, Members, I think that
we need to have a clarification on that if Mr. Kushi would please address that regarding
appeals. And, and just for the new Members who may not be aware, you know, in the
Charter change the authority was taken away from the Board. We had really quite a
protactic ... protracted discussion on this issue last term as to who would hear appeals of
the public.
And while I don't think we solved the situation completely, at least we set it up so
that the Board could hear the appeals. And, and then what, what they have the authority
to do is recommend to the Director whether he should ... what's the word? ..it's not really
approving the appeal.
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In other words, whether the Director should accept their recommendation to
approve the appeal or not. And that is fraught with problems too, because basically the
Director is making the decision, the consumer is appealing it to the Board, and if the
Board agrees with the Director, then there's no other recourse for the consumer to go to
as it's set up now. And we recognized that was the problem. I remember we talked
about maybe sending them to the Board of Variances and Appeals. But we felt that the
Board of Water Supply was the body that had the most information and would be the
body to hear the appeal. And it sounds like there's a problem now.
So, I'm just going to read real quickly, Members, we got a short, well, we got a copy, I
got a copy of a report that the Board of Water Supply's Subcommittee on Water Rules
gave at the last Board meeting. Actually at the February 6th Board meeting. And it's
only a summary of what they're working on and just bringing up a report to the board,
bringing up various items that they think need attention.
And one is that we recommend that there be some provision made for water users in the
community to appeal the decisions of the Department of Water Supply. Hearing related
appeals requires specific knowledge of the Water Department and water systems so that a
dedicated appellate body may be appropriate.
Well, we thought we had done that. So, Mr. Kushi, are you prepared to talk to that at this
point? If you're not I, I won't force the issue.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, I am, if you could point to the ordinance that you established that
you're, you're speaking to that, that gave the Board back appeal, appellate power? I, I,
my mind is blank in that, in that regard.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, I wasn't prepared for this, so I haven't looked it up. And Staff is
looking it up right now. Okay. You know what, Kim, you might try calling down to
David. If he's available he might, our Analyst from last term might be able to locate it.
Okay. So, we'll leave that for now, but we will address it. Mr. Pontanilla, do you
remember us passing that or am I dreaming?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: I kind of recall that we passed that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, I'm pretty sure we did, because we had such a long discussion on
it. But it is not a finished issue, because there needs to be another level of appeal, and I
guess, Mr. Kushi, that's something we're going to have to address with you as we get
into these rules. Okay. Members, any other questions, concerns?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Mr. Pontanilla.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Question for the Water Department in
regards to testimony. Those laterals that's going into private property, can someone ... a
property owner can hook up to those laterals without letting the Department know that
they had tapped onto the, those laterals?
MR. ENG: Member Pontanilla, you're making reference to an existing service lateral serving
one property, an individual property?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, similar to what was shown on the, the photograph
that we got. You do have the water meter, the cover noted as water meter. Someone
would take off the cover, see the lateral in there, and then hook up to those laterals, or
hook up to the lateral.
MR. ENG: Yeah, that's something that is illegal for anyone to, to hook in without getting a,
applying with the Department of Water Supply and getting a meter issued. So, if anyone
were to do that they'd be subject to fines and various penalties.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Do we know of any, anyone doing that?
MR. ENG: You know, I would hope not. You know, obviously in very remote areas... (end of
tape, Side IA) ... there is, there is always that possibility someone could tap into a line.
You know, I, I would ... I'm assuming it's, it's not happening, and if it is, it's very, very
unusual.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. I kind of recall last year in regards to a
family in Pukalani that had the same similar situation where it showed that the water
meter, the water box was there, but there weren't any meters in them. So, I'm assuming,
assuming that there's a lot of subdivisions, especially family subdivisions, those two and
three lots, that were completed without any water meter being installed. So, yeah, I do
recall another incident in Pukalani. Thank you.
MR. ENG: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla.
ITEM NO. 1:

WATER SUPPLY RULES (C.C. Nos. 05-46 & 06-228)

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Members, I guess there's no way to approach a daunting task
except dive right in. I know we're all thrilled to be doing this, but that's why we're here.
You know, I, I reviewed the meeting that we had last time, and I think what we need to
do is skip the definitions for now and get right into the meat of the issue, because we can
talk about definitions all we want, and if we don't see them in the context of how they're
used, it makes, it's basically a waste of time, because we might be making changes out of
context. So, is everyone in agreement to that? Mr. Eng, do you have some opening
comments you'd like to make?
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MR. ENG: Yes, Madam Chair. Yeah, I agree with you. We could easily get bogged down in
the definitions. But there was one definition that we briefly discussed at our last meeting
that we may still want to continue, and that is the "agricultural water consumer" because I
think most of us are under the opinion that that could be rife for a number, you know,
illegal, you know, interpretations, you know. And it's also a class of customer that's
even difficult for our Department to administer. And if we may all look at that definition,
it's, it's fairly, in fact, it's very broad. And, and again it gives my Department, you
know, some problems in dealing with. We are right now administering it as, literally, as
you read it.
An applicant who comes in and requests ag water rates the primary consideration is that
the party is in Ag zoned land and doing these very broad-termed activities of crop
production, stock raising, or dairy farming. And, again, that can open up to so many
things. And I was just wondering if you folks have given any further consideration to
this definition?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Eng. Members, I want to point out that in your binders
there should be a February 14th , excuse me, a February 16th , and I got to point this out.
We sent a request to this Department on February 14th , and we got a reply on
February 16th . And I want to, you know, throw the confetti. In the, in the two years I've
sat on this Committee we've never had such responsible response, and I'm sure Mr.
Mateo can agree with me, because when I took the Committee from him, he had letters
two-years old that still hadn't had responses. So, thank you very much, Mr. Eng, for
doing that.
And you'll see, Members, that what he's provided us is a list of all the various, well, I
thought it was the applicants. It says potential applicants. Mr. Eng, you want to speak on
that?
MR. ENG: I don't happen to have that in my binder. However, what-CHAIR ANDERSON: It is ...
MR. ENG: --my Department submitted to you was the updated Up country priority list. Oh, I
see, I'm sorry. Yeah, this is a list of agricultural water customers that we have on our
files. And it's, again, for-CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, have you found it?
MR. ENG: --privacy reasons ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Excuse me, Director Eng.
MR. ENG: Sure.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: I want to make sure everybody's on the same page. It's going to look
like this, folks. It has a big list attached, and it should be one of the last things under
WR-I in your binder. Okay. Thank you, Director Eng, go ahead.
MR. ENG: And, yeah, my Fiscal Department was able to extract this information. For privacy
reasons we had to delete the customers' names. So, all you really see are the account
numbers and the service addresses for those customers. It doesn't even give their specific
activity, but I would say probably over 90 percent of these customers are in some kind of
ag crop-related activity.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Can you explain why it says list of potential applicants on the top of the
list?
MR. ENG: No, I can't to be perfectly honest. These are our active ag rate customers.
CHAIR ANDERSON: These are, these are all active?
MR. ENG: Yes, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Question.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How do we, does somebody actually go out and check on these
agricultural whatevers that are, people that are qualified for ag water rates, does
somebody actually go and see what kind of agriculture is going on?
MR. ENG: Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Please.
MR. ENG: Member Baisa, yes, we do. We have an employee from our field operations division
go out to the property that has requested ag rates. But, again, his, you know, judgment is
just based on a very broad interpretation. And, you know, again, based on the definition
there's no scope limit of the type of activities. So, you know, in theory almost anything
that looks like an ag activity or livestock raising would qualify.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Madam Chair. Mr. Director, is it possible that maybe we could
develop or the Department could develop some guidelines for judging what qualifies? 1
mean is it two head of cattle, or is it 500 protea plants or, you know, what is the standard
that we use?
MR. ENG: Yeah, well, to answer your question, Member Baisa, yeah, I'd love to develop
standards myself, but I'm, you know, 1 think it's really this body that has the authority to
do so. And currently, yeah, we do not have standards. The Ag zoning is probably the
primary, primary criteria. And, yeah, my Department is really seeking help from this
body to direct us. But, yes, 1 personally would like to see some stricter standards for this
definition.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Mr. Eng, pardon my naivete, but I'm new to this Committee so 1
may ask questions that, you know, don't sound like 1 know what's going on. 1 don't. I'm
learning as we go. But 1 can understand ... 1 have heard in the public a lot of comments
about alleged agricultural use, and there's a level of discomfort with the public who
would like to see ag lands used for agriculture.
Now, if it's possible, because I, you know, I'm again in the learning process, would a
suggested list of criteria coming from your Department to this Committee help, or is that
possible, Madam Chair?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Sure, but 1 mean 1 think he wants us to give him direction. And 1 would
make a suggestion that 1 think what we need to do on this particular definition, which is a
critical definition, because people have certain permitted rights if they have Ag zoning,
and certain permitted uses, and certain restrictions. So, under Title 19 for our zoning
purposes there are various criteria that need to be followed. And that 1 think is one
definition that we need to look at, the zoning definition.
And then there's another definition, or rather there's another use for Ag zoning and that is
real property tax. You get taxed a different rate if you are actively using the land for
farming. And they have a criteria that they use that sets that Ag rate. And, again, we
have many people in the community they're upset that people get the Ag rate and yet
they're not doing any active farming, the Ag tax rate. And then, again, for Department of
Water Supply you get a, 1 guess, discounted rate of water use if you're an Ag user. So,
we need to look at all those different criteria and see if there's a way we can make them
all, you know, in sync.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Madam Chair, this would be very relevant, because the Planning
Committee will be looking also at this issue of ago You know, as a country girl myself
when 1 see ag 1 know ag, and 1 also know what's not ago
CHAIR ANDERSON: A couple of palm trees, would you consider that ag, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, Madam Chair.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: So, we'll look at those various definitions, and I'll bring those at our next
meeting. And what are you currently using right now, Director Eng, that your
Department is currently using?
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, if I may on behalf of the Director? There are, there is a Chapter in
your, your, your binders called "Rules For Charges For Water Service". In your, in your
binders from the very beginning, if you start and look at page, I guess, it's 0000080, and
which is just a copy of all of the existing water rules. And it's entitled Chapter 7, "Rules
For Charges For Water Service". There's a definition for ag consumers, general water
consumers, non-potable water agricultural consumers, and the next page ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Hang on. Hang on. Hang on. Deputy Corporation Counsel, we
got to have a chance to all get on this so that we can follow what you're trying to tell us.
Are you telling me that this Chapter 7 is not in this current draft that we're reviewing?
MR. KUSHI: This is the one lowe you, one of the ones lowe.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: This is why I'm trying to clarify.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, have you found it? It's at the beginning, Rules and
Regulations, the very first draft, and then Chapter 7 ... which is page, what, again, Mr.
Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: It's on the bottom right-hand corner, Page 80.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Page what?
MR. KUSHI: Eight zero.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Eight zero. My pages are ...
MR. KUSHI: Somebody numbered them with a stamp.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh. Oh. Oh .... (short pause) . .. Well, I don't have those numbers. I
have l02-dash-something. So, I'll have ... oh, 80. Mr. Kushi, you don't need this?
MR. KUSHI: Pardon me?
CHAIR ANDERSON: You don't need this one?
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, later. Just for your reference, Madam Chair.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. KUSHI: Anyway, what I'm trying to say is that the, what, this is what the Department uses
to classify and approve con ... , consumers who would want Ag rates. And on the
Section 16-7-4, Subparagraph C, it does have some kind of guidelines whereby the
Department will look at the State General Excise Tax Form G-45, Federal IRS Schedule
F, and some other criteria for them to qualify to continue using the Ag rate or Ag water
rates. And, again, this is just for the Committee's information, these will be coming
before your review again shortly.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Kushi. I see that you've taken the definition and put the
definition in the rules that we're currently dealing with. That's what's brought this all up,
right?
MR. KUSHI: Correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and do you also have in non-potable water agricultural consumers?
Did you put that in too? This is going to be an important section for us to deal with.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, I did put that in.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, Members, I'm just going to read it into the record which the,
the further definition. I, I don't know if we, maybe we might want to put some of this
into the definition, but I think we should at least read it into the record for now. And as I
said we'll check on real property tax and what they use, and we'll also look at Title 19. I
know that there's, somewhere there's a $35,000 requirement for, if you want to put up a
second farm dwelling, or a dwelling for farm laborers you have to show that you're
actively producing income.
So, just because we're on this and Mr. Kushi was kind enough to point it out, let's read it
into the record. Each consumer requesting an agricultural rate for water service shall
submit an annual written app ... , application and supply an authorization for the Board of
Water Supply to obtain a copy of the State's Excise Tax Form, or the Federal Internal
Revenue Services Schedule F, or other Federal Internal Revenue forms showing farm
income. Existing lands with agricultural rate shall continue with that agricultural rate
until the farm income use does not qualify for the agricultural rate. The agricultural
zoning and designation restrictions shall commence for new applications for agricultural
rate after the effective date of this rule. Boy, that's a mouthful.
Well, let me just start by asking, do you guys do this? Do you ask for an annual written?
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, yes, we do. Upon initial application the applicant submits a GE
license which indicates the activity of the business. And they're required to do, and they
do an annual reapplication or certification. So, we have a procedure in place, it's just
more defining their actual activities.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: So, you depend on getting a General Excise Tax disclosure?
MR. ENG: Yes, that's correct. But, again, as we probably all know the GE license, anyone can
get a GE license and state any kind of activity. So, that could be fraught with loopholes
also.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. Thank you for that. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Madam Chair, my concern is that we would probably need to put
some teeth into this, because it says that the person shall submit an annual application and
supply the GET form or, you know, give the Water, Board of Water Supply the
authorization to get it. It says shall submit an annual written application and supply an
authorization for the Board of Water Supply to obtain a copy. I think it should come with
their application. We shouldn't put this requirement on the Board of Water Supply who
is already too busy.
And my concern is that it's very general. It doesn't give any guidelines as to how much
income is required. If I can show that I made $200 from selling plums, does that qualify?
I mean I wouldn't know what the, what the guideline is.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, and as Director Eng pointed out last time it would be very easy for
Ms. Baisa to sell him, go out and buy $2,000 worth of tangerines and sell them to
Mr. Pontanilla, and Mr. Pontanilla could then sell you two, $2,000 worth of ti leaves and
there you are.
COUNCILMEMBERBAISA: Yeah, so ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: So, we appreciate that perspective, because it is quite, you know, an
advantage for people, and, and we don't want people to be getting a discounted Ag rate
so that they can landscape their estate at a cheaper rate than those of us who are just using
water for domestic purpose. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think my concern, Madam Chair, is that so many people are
waiting for a water meter and the issuance of that water meter is based upon adequate
supply. And I would like to see our, you know, scarce resources helping with this
affordable housing situation. And therefore I think we have to look at everything that
affects that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Ms. Baisa, that's a good point. Okay. Before we get into
these I'd just like to address the appeal if Mr. Kushi is ready for that.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thanks. Go ahead.
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MR. KUSHI: What you've handed me was a draft of a Chapter 14.02 entitled "Board of Water
Supply", and it did in that draft, I recall, I mean it does state that the Board has the power
to review .. .let me just read it. That the Board shall herein determine appeals alleging
error from any person aggrieved by a decision or order of the Director or ... of the
Director or Department. An appeal may be granted only if the Board finds one of the
following, and they list three criterias. And it goes on and on and on.
In essence it copies the existing language that is contained in the current Rules and
Regulations. Now, to my knowledge, you know, Madam Chair, this is, this has yet to
pass this body, Chapter 14.02. I know it's in the, your binders somewhere, but it's, I
don't believe that's, it's, it's in effect.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, you don't believe we passed it out to the Council?
MR. KUSHI: No.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Shoots, I thought we did.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, I, I know it's under discussion in one of your other, other items. But, again,
it's in Title 14 ... Chapter 14.02, and I just checked the current County ordinances.
Chapter 14.02 is entitled "Water Use and Development Plan" which did pass.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, but I, so, I know it's under discussion, but it's not passed yet.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Huh. Okay. Thank you for that, Mr. Kushi. I guess I was mistaken. I
thought for sure we passed it out, and it's something that we will have to pass out and
discuss if we haven't. We'll, we'll double check, because we did do some number
changing here, and it might have gotten lost in the shuffle.
And, you know, while we're on the subject I'll just mention that we do have to take it
another step, because an appeal has to have an authority beyond the person who they are
appealing to. In other words, if the Board doesn't have the final say to overturn a
decision of the Department and, and that decision, even on their recommendation still
lays with the Department, then you don't really have an appeal unless you go to court.
And I, I would hope that we could find a way to do that so people do not have to go to
court to get a fair appeal.
So, that's another thing that we'll look at and bring up at the next meeting, Members.
And I will try my best to work with Staff to come up with something a little bit more
definitive for us to look at for the Ag rates and bring you forward all those different
definitions. We need to be consistent as possible. Okay. So, Members, General
conditions.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair, before you move on.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Just a follow-up with Director Eng regarding that
submission you referenced to us on February 16th .
CHAIR ANDERSON: On the Ag list?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, the, the list of potential app ... , applicants. Mr. Eng, you,
you indicated that these were not potential applicants and these are all active clients or
customers. So, is there another list of potential applicants and is it just as voluminous as
this?
MR. ENG: No, this is the one and only list, Member Mateo. So, I don't know why it said on the
top potential. These are the actual active and only list of Ag-rate payers.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you for that clarification.
MR. ENG: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON:
represents?

Yeah, and, and do we have any record on how much water this

MR. ENG: You know, I don't know if we have that information. I think I can check and see if!
can find out. You know, I think I could probably find something I'll get back to this
body.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, thank you, Director Eng, that would be helpful, because this does
represent potable water, correct?
MR. ENG: Yes, currently it does.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, I think that would help us if we knew how much water in
these various areas are being used, are actually being used for ag purposes. And, and
then is there ever an occasion where there might be a, a split? In other words, at one
address they get an Ag rate for a certain amount, and then, and then the rest is paid at a
regular rate. Would that ever happen?
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MR. ENG: Well, basically how we have our rates established and, you know, with this coming
budget session you'll have an opportunity to view our, our new rate structures. But the
problematic thing with Ag rates is that for Ag rate customers first, I believe it's
30,000 gallons over a two-month period they, they pay the normal general rates as any
other individual. It's when you exceed that, whatever that threshold, then they get the,
the Ag rates, which are currently 85 cents per 1,000 gallons. And that's where the
concern would be for those so-called gentlemen farmers that we want to limit. For
legitimate, legitimate agriculture that's great, you know, as they use higher quantities of
water.
Whereas, the Department is looking at more better conservation measures and, again,
later on it will be detailed to you better regarding the new single-family rate that we've
developed, which we're trying to encourage conservation at the higher consumption
levels. And so, again, those gentlemen farmers who are in Ag rate are going to be doing
totally opposite of what we're trying to achieve in this community.
CHAIR ANDERSON: I appreciate that very much, Director Eng, that you're conscious of that
and concerned about it, because as Ms. Baisa just said we may be holding up some small
family subdivisions because people who should not be getting an Ag rate are using
excessive amounts of water for a purpose other than ago And we want to, you know,
tighten that up as quickly as possible. Any other questions on that, Members, before we
go on? Okay.
So, we're going to start, Members, like I said we're going to skip past all the definitions
and go right to 14.04, "WATER SERVICE APPLICATION, INSTALLATION, AND
REQUIREMENTS". Everybody there? I'm going to ask our Committee Analyst if
she'll read this into the record and try to save my voice a little bit this time around, and
also it allows me to spend time formulating the next move here, because we got to be,
what I'm trying to do, Members, is every time there's something that has been suggested
either from Fire Department, DSA, I'm also looking at the suggestions or the concerns
that the Board of Water Supply brought up at their last meeting so that we can be
cognizant of it as we're looking through the rules.
So, she's going to, Kim's going to read the existing rule, and this is also for the benefit of
the listening public. She's going to read the existing rule, and then when she gets to the
part where there's a change ... let's do it this way. Mr. Kushi has already Ramseyered
these rules for us, Members. So, where it is in a bracket that is the existing rule that's
being deleted and he has added in new language that's underlined. So, Kim, just for our
purposes today read the ... (end of tape, Side IE) ... part of the rule that currently exists.
Don't read anything in brackets. Skip that and read the underlined. Because basically
what he's doing is just rewording it grammatically so it makes more sense. So, I don't
want us to spend time on those. Only on things that are, you know, formative changes.
So ...
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Madam Chair.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Thank you, Kim.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Okay. "14.04.010, General Conditions. (A) Any prospective consumer
whose premises are within service limits established by the Department and adjacent to a
distributing main where pressure conditions permit may obtain water service; provided,
that the Department has a sufficient water supply developed for domestic, irrigation, and
fire protection purposes to take ... " -- Mr. Kushi, do you mean on there or do you mean
no?
MR. KUSHI: Excuse me?
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, just read it as he, as he has it.
MS. WILLENBRINK: ... "irrigation and fire protection purposes to take on new or additional
service without detriment to those already served, and the consumer agrees to abide by
the provisions of this Chapter."
MR. KUSHI: Correct.
MS. WILLENBRINK: "(B) Where an extension of mains is necessary, where large quantities of
water are required, or where a substantial investment by the Department is necessary to
provide service, the consumer will be informed by the Department as to any special
conditions and/or charges, if any, to be imposed for the service such that water can be
delivered in adequate quantities and pressures for domestic and irrigation uses under peak
conditions, and for adequate fire protection."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Hold up right there, Kim. I want to go back to the first section
(A) that you read previous to this last one, because you did stop and, and you were trying
to get a clarification. And I can see now why, because, Mr. Kushi, you took out
"sufficient water supply developed for domestic use and for fire protection to take no new
or additional service without detriment to those already served and the consumer agrees
to abide by the provisions of these rules and regulations".
So, you took out "no", "no new or additional service without detriment", and changed it
to "irrigation and fire protection purposes to take on new or additional service without
detriment to those already served." Does that change the intent at all, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: In my mind it doesn't, Madam Chair. It just kind of rewords it, and, and I added
in "irrigation", of course. But in essence basically the intent is that anybody can apply
provided that the application and the use of water will be ... will not be to the detriment of
existing consumers and, of course, they abide by the rules and regulations. So, the intent
is still there.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. KUSHI: I sort of just reworded it.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. And it, it does flow better. Any questions, Members, on either of
those two? Okay. "Special conditions" is just a, further clarifying term. Is that correct,
Mr. Kushi, under (B) where it says, you've added in, it was "the conditions", "as to the
conditions" you added in "any special conditions"?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, in, in the past, understand this is not subdivision. There's a separate section
for subdivisions where the Department would have its own set of conditions and
requirements. These are just, you know, you have a lot, and you come in, and you apply.
It's assumed that your lot is a existing subdivided lot. However, there are some
circumstances where for whatever the reason is these are old, established lots and the
infrastructure surrounding these lots may not be up to Code, may not have the correct
adequate water pressure. So, there are some situations where the Department will make
special conditions, impose special conditions to provide adequate service.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and just give us a for instance, such as?
MR. KUSHI: Maybe storage, storage requirements that may not have been required when the lot
was initially subdivided. Maybe fire flow protection requirements in terms of the size of
the line. Maybe these lots were not subdivided at all. Maybe they were just created by
some, some surveyor who just divided it up and got a TMK. There are a lot of lots
Up country like that. Maybe in terms of elevation agreements, the property is situated at
such a level where we cannot provide adequate fire protection, or, or even a pumping for
domestic, get the water to that certain elevation. Then the consumer would have to put in
an own private pump system. Those kinds of situations.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Those are a lot of variables.
MR. KUSHI: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. I mean I, I guess there, there should be a discussion on where the
responsibility lies to deliver this water in, in, you know, how far does the Department
have to go to deliver the water to the, to the consumer and how far does the consumer
have to go to accommodate the Department to serve them. So, you know, the, the
opening statement says "Any perspective consumer whose premises are within service
limits established by the Department and adjacent to a distributing main where pressure
conditions permit".
That kind of qualifies you right there as to whether or not you can even request service,
right? So, what I'm hearing from you is there are exceptions. If the pressure doesn't
permit, then you have to put in a storage tank, or some kind of booster pump, or
something like that. Is that what those special conditions refer to, Mr. Kushi?

- 24 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 26, 2007

MR. KUSHI: Yes, and maybe, you know, Deputy Director Yamashige can expand on his
experience, because, you know, he being the engineer is that we've had situations where,
you know, the, the, the permits or the approvals that come to the Department are in
basically two forms. One, a review of subdivisions where they, they sign off or they
don't, or impose conditions. The other one is, or the other forms are building permits
where, you know, it can, it can stop there. So, they apply certain requirements on both
situations.
Subdivisions, again, they have their own set of rules. In building permits they have to
deal with the lot as, as it exists right now. And sometimes they want to go back and, you
know, clarify or impose further conditions on the previous subdivision that may have
been missed by the Department. And there are a whole lot of situations like that also. If
you recall, there's this ... in the subdivision as well as building permit, the family
subdivisions they deferred a whole slew of requirements, and now the family is not there,
and there you're dealing with third-party, non-family members-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: --who, who demand a meter, but yet have not fulfilled the requirements. There
are ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: No, wait a minute. Mr. Kushi, when you said they deferred all kinds of
subdivisions requirements who, who's they?
MR. KUSHI: Pursuant to the Rules and Regulations when you do a family subdivision you cut
up the property, let's say, a nine-acre lot into three, three parcels, three acres each go to
mom, dad, brother, sister, or whoever.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. KUSHI: Okay. We defer the improvements, but you don't get a meter. We defer the
improvements, then when you do get a meter and do get a building permit you have to
fulfill those requirements. And now, mom, dad, brother, and sister sells it to Mr. "X",
and they weren't informed about these requirements.
CHAIR ANDERSON: They weren't, were not informed that the required improvements were
deferred.
MR. KUSHI: Correct. It's a recorded document, but somehow they just don't do it. And now,
they come and plead to the Department please give us a meter. But we ask them where
are, where, how are you going to do these improvements? Well, that's where we stand.
It's worse yet if it' s Up country, because now they don't get, they can't get a meter.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Because the lack of source.

- 25 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 26, 2007

MR. KUSHI: Correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Isn't there a requirement in the, in the real estate code or whatever that
you have to give full disclosure to people on those kind of restrictions on their property?
MR. KUSHI: I believe there is. If not, it should be. But, you know, that's, that's the realtor's
situation.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Which ends up being our situation.
MR. KUSHI: Not from the County's standpoint.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, I only say that in that we, we have to deal with people that are
feeling like they're being shortchanged, because they weren't adequately informed.
Okay. Shall we go on with (C)? Any other comments, anybody?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair, just to continue off your last comment about
individuals just looking at perhaps not really understanding.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: From, from my own, my own understanding, Madam Chair, I, I
think one of our initial problems is we have to go back to the beginning, 14.01.020, "The
Purpose". And the purpose in itself can be misleading, because it specifically states that
the County Water Code seeks to provide a just and fair distribution of water to the people
of Maui County, and it is the policy of the County of Maui to provide clean, healthful,
and plentiful water to its residents, and that this County Water Code shall be liberally
interpreted.
So, we've kind of left so many doors open, because it's hard to understand what "just and
fair" is when you don't get a meter, and you've waited for a long time. And it's hard to
understand why we're saying no to meters when part of the code ref. .. , references
plentiful water to its residents, and then the fact that this is to be interpreted liberally.
So, we're kind of, like, stuck between a rock and a hard place by, as Ms., Ms. Baisa
referenced, you know, enforcement. How can we enforce something that is as vague and
general as this that virtually opens the store for discounts when there is no discounts
available? So, I just have problems with the existing discussion, because the purpose in
itself perhaps is a little too open-ended.

- 26 -

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 26, 2007

CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, I think I agree with you, Mr. Mateo, and I, I think Mr. Kushi also
agreed with you, because he gave us a whole new section to use there. And we had, we
had a bit of a discussion on that last time, and I think the, the main concern that I had at
the time was that the purpose, we may want to change the purpose. And, you know, I'm
not tied to us, I think what we need to do is get into the meat of the discussion here so we
can, we can surface all the problems, and then we can go back and tie it up, and, and
maybe we want to create a whole, a whole new purpose, and that's our prerogative.
You know, DSA wants us to, to say that the, the intent of the article is to ensure a just and
fair distribution of water to the people of the County considering the availability of the
County's water resources and systems. So, that's another kind of open-ended statement
that we might want to tie down a little bit.
So, Members, it's a quarter to eleven. Is everybody ready for a break? Okay. Let's take
a ten-minute break and we'll reconvene at five till.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Committee is in recess... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:45 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:01 a.m.

CHAIR ANDERSON: .. . (gavel) . .. Thank you, Members, for that recess. The Water Resource
Committee meeting of February 26th is now reconvened. So, Members, we're going to, I
think what we're going to do today is plow along until 11 :30. Okay, and see how far we
can get. I think there's going to have to be quite a bit of time spent by myself and Staff
between now and the next meeting, because I don't see this as being a really expeditious
way to get through this. And, and I don't want us to just get through it. I want us to find
policy within these rules that we can deliberate on. We might want to change some of the
policies. And, you know, that's certainly our prerogative and possibly something that's
sorely needed.
So, I will make that promise to you for the next meeting that we'll have this a little better
organized so that we're not spending time on things that, for the most part, should be
administrative rules and not something that we should be adopting by ordinance, because
the more we get into this the more confusing it gets to be, because there's so much
cross-referencing. For instance, Kim, you want to start on number (C)? Members, are
we all there?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Page 8 of the draft, top of the page.
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MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Madam Chair. (C), "For all buildings, improvements, structures,
and other developments not provided for under Section 14.05.020, the developer shall
install and pay for the required storage tanks, appurtenances, and pipeline improvements
from the storage tank to the development site in accordance with Section 14.05.020(A),
Section 14.05.020(B), and Section 14.05.020(C)."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Let's stop right there. Just so everyone understands what we're
talking about right now and what Kim just read is under general conditions. And it
references things in accordance with Section 14.05.020. And that section 14.05 is
"Subdivision Water System Requirements". So, Mr. Kushi, please verify what I'm
saying is correct, or if it isn't correct. That this section is the section that he just told us
either you come in for a water meter, or a water review and approval for a subdivision, or
then you come in later for a building permit. So, this Section 14.05 is what people have
to, have to comply with when they get subdivision approval from the Water Department
unless, of course, it's deferred. Is that correct?
MR. KUSHI: Correct, Madam Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. So, 14.05.020, "Reservoirs or Storage Tanks". "Subdividers shall
install storage tanks, appurtenances and pipeline from the tank site to the subdivision
proper in accordance with the Department of Water Supply Standards." So, we're going
back to Page 8, top of the 8th . I just wanted you to know what 14.05.020 ... so, if they're,
basically what you're saying is if they're not required to provide this or if it's deferred
when they get their subdivision approved, then under general conditions they can be
required to do it when they come in for the building permit. Is that the purpose of this,
Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Yes, and it was always intended as such-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: --because if you look at the deleted brackets-CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
MR. KUSHI: --it makes reference to Section 2-2.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
MR. KUSHI: That was the previous subdivision code.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Okay. Okay. Kim.
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MS. WILLENBRINK: (D)," All water supplied by the Department will be measured by means
of suitable meters registering in gallons. When it is impractical to meter any service a
flat rate may be charged. The amounts to be paid for water service shall be in accordance
with the rates established by the County's annual budget. The Department will determine
the location and its size of all meters and service connections to its system. All service
connections shall become the property of the Department for operation and maintenance
after installation and new connections or disconnections may be made thereto by the
Department at any time."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Any questions? Okay.
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, I, I have one.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yes. Sure, Mr. Eng.
MR. ENG: In the second sentence when it says "When it is impractical to meter any service a
flat rate may be charged." The current practice typically in a water utility is we may
charge an amount based on an estimate of consumption.
CHAIR ANDERSON: So that ...
MR. ENG: Maybe you may, might want to keep is a, a flat rate charged or a rate based on an
estimated consumption.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And, and what is a flat rate? I mean are there flat rates established?
MR. ENG: I, I don't know. I'm not familiar with flat rates being used. So, we may even want
to delete that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: And so an estimated, which seems more practical.
MR. ENG: Yeah, because usually estimates are based on generally historical. It could be, like,
the, the meter broke. You know we have some previous record. Or there may be some
other methodology we would use to estimate the amount. But it might even be safer and
more practical for the County to use an estimate rather than a flat rate, because we may
undercharge our, ourselves.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. And so, the estimated rate would be based on the number of
fixtures, the number of people in the household, or how, how is it estimated?
MR. ENG: You know, it, it could be a number of factors. If, if, if practical, we would like to
use some previous historical consumption or comparable consumption from a very
similar customer's consumption. But, but we would have some kind of methodology to
determine the estimated amount.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Maybe we'll ask for that, because the next question is when it is
impractical to meter any service how -- give us an instance -- I mean how could it be
impractical to have a meter?
MR. ENG: You know, right offhand I can't think of an instance. There's generally always a
way to at least put in some type of temporary meter, but it's always good to have that
option just in the event you come upon an unusual case.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That you would just allow someone to open up a lateral without a meter.
MR. ENG: No, we wouldn't. We would definitely try to install, again, some kind of temporary
meter or, or find some way to come up with a reasonable estimate of, of their
consumption.
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, one, one instance would be use of fire hydrants for dust control, for
whatever purposes, or standpipes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, you mean, like, allowing a contractor to use a standpipe or a fire
hydrant for, to gather water for dust control or something like that.
MR. KUSHI: Yeah, or fire control or-CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: --trucking, or whatever.
MR. ENG: Yeah, Madam Chair, that would really be unusual, because even for, for dust control
purposes, let's say taking water off of a hydrant, we, we would put on a temporary meter.
But let's say one wasn't available, then we would come up with some kind of reasonable
estimate.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. I, I'm just trying to think of any instances why it would be
impractical to have a meter. And, and what you just mentioned makes sense, but in, I
can't think of any other instance where you would allow people to use water on a regular
basis without a meter. And if you can, if anybody in the Department can come up with a
reason to explain that it would be helpful, if there's other instances. Okay. So, we'll put
that estimated, estimated rate. We'll look at changing that and re ... , rewriting the
language for that, Director Eng. Any other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Just a clarification.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, "a flat" would be removed. That's the proposal?
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Flat rate?
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah. So, it's going to read "any service an estimated
rate may be charged".
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, that's the option, right. I'm not making a change right now.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But, because I would like to know, because, you know, the fact that
Director Eng is new he might want to go back to his engineers and ask them have you
used this flat rate before we just do away with it. And, of course, you guys, you know,
they're changing this, the, the big change here in this section is that the rates were
established by the Department. We're changing that to the rates were established by the
County's annual budget. So, we will have the chance annually to look at those rates and
reset them. Okay. Kim, (E).
MS. WILLENBRINK: (E), "Fire hydrants and necessary pipelines and appurtenances shall be
installed by the developer in rural, residential, business, industrial, apartment. duplex,
commercial, airport and hotel districts, and standpipes and necessary pipelines in
agricultural districts as required by the Department for adequate fire protection; provided,
however, that the foregoing shall not be applicable to the construction of the first and
second dwelling unit on a premises in any district. The Standard of the Insurance
Services Office's Guide for the Determination of Required Fire Flow shall be used as a
guide in designing mains for fire flow requirements as covered in Section 14.05.030."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Members, any questions on that? Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Madam Chair, if you don't do anything today this section is, we talk about
this section is of great importance. Deputy Yamashige may, may chime in, but this
section has caused more consternation and stress within the Department than I believe
any others, because what this really says is that you start off with the premise that fire
protection is required, but then it has a proviso that any, that the first two dwellings in
any district is exempt.
Some history on this is that this section was amended in 1984, by the then Board of
Directors ... Board of Water Supply to provide for that exemption or exception, whatever
you want to call it. Previously it read in essence, there was a period after the first
sentence. There was no "provided". Now, the intent as far as I can recall, not recall, but
discern from the, the purpose of the amendment was that it stated in 1984, the purpose of
the amendment is to revise this section to require developments in Ag and Rural districts
to install fire protection and to exempt first and second dwelling units from fire
protection. But I'm thinking if it went further and exempted the first and second
dwellings in all districts.
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Now, I can only gather that, Of, or think that the Department and the Board assumed or
presumed that these fire protection, necessary fire protection pipelines and, and units
would have been caught at the subdivision stage, which is the different section. But
we've come across numerous building permits where fire protection was not required, but
yet they fall upon, they fall on this section you have before you in saying, hey, our first
two units are exempt. So, again, we're, the Department has been following the rules as
existing, but yet we feel that, the Department feels that the health and safety factor is
somewhat compromised.
CHAIR ANDERSON: By not requiring fire protection for the first and second dwelling?
MR. KUSHI: Correct.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But only the third person on line gets fire protection?
MR. KUSHI: The third, third dwelling unit on any lot.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah. Oh, on one lot.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: I got a question.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. In rural subdivisions, for instance Pukalani
Terrace, the old, maybe the first or second increment, those are all rural lots. And one of
the issues that come across I think constantly, and, and you may have the same problem
is regards to families that want to enlarge their existing home by going to a second floor.
I, I consider the first dwelling and the second dwelling, and the addition on the first
dwelling going to the second floor in my mind it's still the first dwelling, but we've not
approved requests such as that, especially in Upcountry. Maybe somebody can give me
an explanation to that? How do we consider first and second dwelling, first of
all? ... (end a/tape, Side 2A) . ..
MR. Y AMASHIGE: Let me try and explain or that, that particular situation. Up country is a
totally different animal, because there's also the limitation of source. So, when
somebody comes in for a building permit to expand their house, they're required to put
together a fixture unit calculation which determines how much water that dwelling is
going to use. And as the dwelling gets larger they may exceed the capacity of the
existing meter, and then the meter issuance rule comes into play where they are not able
to get a larger meter. So, it probably doesn't fall into the discussion that we're having
right now, but more the meter issuance rule.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MR. YAMASHIGE: I'm not sure if that answers ...
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Well, it part answers my question and one of the
problems that ... in regards to what I just said was that the person, the applicant of the, you
know, new construction going up another floor, in order to get fire protection they needed
to replace the fire hydrant which was close by to his home. You know, he had to pay for
that. And that part I couldn't understand if. .. you know, why are we telling these people
to replace the fire, to replace the standpipe with a fire hydrant, which is something that
we are responsible for.
CHAIR ANDERSON: That's a good question. Would you like to answer that, Mr. Yamashige?
MR. YAMASHIGE: I was going to offer to try and take a look at that particular situation,
because I'm sure there's more, probably more to it than what we're discussing right now.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Okay. You can take it off-line, Chair, unless you want
comments from the Department in regards to that.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Well, you know, this whole thing with the fire flow is going to be a big
issue here, Members. Again, I'm going to send this so you'll see where we are
anticipating some really good recommendations from the Board of Water Supply, their,
their Rules Subcommittee sometime in April. But in this update that they gave to the, the
Board at their last meeting one of their recommendations was that they, that the fire flow
requirements of the Department of Water Supply and the Fire Department be made to
appear more consistent.
There have been many instances in the past where members of the community have come
before the Board of Water Supply and questioned why their building plans do not meet
Department of Water Supply fire flow requirements, but have received approval from the
Fire Department. So, that's something that we really need to, to look at and apparently
this is, is this the place where we're going to make those adjustments, Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Madam Chair, not necessarily, because that, the current discrepancy is between
the Water Department and Fire Department I believe are in system standards and flow
requirements, gallons per minute, et cetera. The one we're discussing now is just the
blanket exemption. You know ...
CHAIR ANDERSON: Uh-huh. And so, originally, you believe, the exemption was only meant
for Agricultural district.
MR. KUSHI: Well, that's what the amendment stated, you know, under its purpose. But, again,
you know, I wasn't here in '84, and, you know, nobody really, I don't think anyone from
the Department now was there, but again it's, I believe it's one of the so-called, your
so-called policy calls which would, would assist the Department. Or again, assist the
County as a whole in its general fire-protection scheme, because applicants are definitely
hanging on to this section when they come in for building permits.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
Madam Chair, just a comment on my colleague's
Mr. Pontanilla's example about somebody in Pukalani wanting to add a second story and
that being looked at especially because it happens to be Upcountry. You know, the
residents Up country historically, and I'm part of that history, a third generation
Up country resident, really are not treated fairly, because we pay property tax like
everybody else, but then we're always told, well, you live Up country so you can't have
this and you can't have that. And if that is the case, then maybe we need to look at some
kind of equity to compensate us for living Up country and not being, having access to the
ability to put a second, second story on our home, because again here we go affecting
affordable housing.
So, you know, I'm concerned about that. I think it's a fairness issue. And I understand
we cannot make water out of air, if it's not there it's not there, but then maybe we have to
have some kind of consideration for people who live Up country and have that limitation
placed on their ability to use their property.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, maybe we should, but I think what we should do is get the water.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm with you, let's get it, if we can.
CHAIR ANDERSON: If we can. I'm really sorry that we don't have Pookela Well on our
agenda, Members. That was an oversight, because I did mean to get a status on that, but I
guess we can't talk about it since it's not on our agenda, and it's not in these rules. So,
we will talk about it at our next meeting. So, do you have any suggestions, Mr. Kushi?
Are you just saying that this should be a policy decision, or can maybe the Department
give us some kind of reasoning or substantiation for leaving this in?
MR. KUSHI: Right. My, my, you know, my recommendation or suggestion would be to have
the Department look at that and, and see, make recommendations from their side. I think
a fair and just resolution suggestion may be that, you know, you preserve the exemptions
provided that it can be shown and proven to the Department that when these lots were
established they indeed had fire control requirements. You know, otherwise they be they
have to put it in when they apply and there would be no exemptions.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: But, I, I, I have no suggested language right now.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right. Okay. So, can we please make note of that, and we'll ask the
Department to look into that and make a recommendation please. Okay. Any other
questions, Members? Like I said we're not trying to solve any problems, we're trying to
find the problems. Okay, (F), Kim.
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MS. WILLENBRINK: (F), "The developer shall install, in accordance with the provisions of
this article, and pay for the water system required for the development."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Go ahead.
MS. WILLENBRINK: 14.04.020-CHAIR ANDERSON: Uh-huh.
MS. WILLENBRINK: --"Water Service-Application. (A), Each prospective consumer shall be
required to sign the standard application form for the water service desired and assume
the responsibility for the payment of the future charges for service at the designated
location before water is turned on for any use. The person, entity, or organization signing
the application form shall be held liable for the payment of all charges for water service
at the designated location.
(B), Privileges may be granted only to property owners provided that consideration may
be given to tenants of any property owner if the property owner will co-sign the tenant's
application for such an intended water service.
(C), If a tenant who, if a tenant fails to pay water service bills rendered, the property
owner who co-signed the application for water service shall pay such bills and in the
event of the non-payment, the Department may refuse to furnish water service until all
outstanding bills are paid.
(D)" ...

CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Let's just stop right there. Those, those three, actually the last
two is just saying that if somebody has a tenant on their property and the tenant wants to
get a water meter, I guess you couldn't be a tenant without the meter. Let's say the
owner is off-island or something, then this authorizes that tenant with a signed document
from the owner to come and get the water meter. Is that what that is all ...
MR. ENG: Madam Chair, I think if I may correct you, it really puts the landlord on the hook to
pay the water bill if the tenant skips, skips out.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Right.
MR. ENG: So, yeah, these are two very important paragraphs.
CHAIR ANDERSON: But it does give the tenant a right with the, with the property owner's
permission to seek a meter.
MR. ENG: Yes.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: And then if he, if he leaves and there's an outstanding water bill, the
property owner has to pay it.
MR. ENG: Yes.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. That's clear then. Okay. Let's just finish up this section, Kim,
(D).
MS. WILLENBRINK: (D), "Charges will begin when the water service is established and will
continue until due notification, in writing, from the consumer or until discontinued by the
Department for failure of the consumer to comply with the provisions of this Chapter.
When an application for water service is made by a former consumer who was
responsible for and failed to pay all bills for water service previously rendered regardless
of location or time incurred, the Department may refuse to furnish service to such an
applicant until the outstanding bills are paid.
(F), A consumer taking possession of premises and using water without having made
application for the water delivered from the date of the last recorded meter reading" ... I
think I skipped something.
CHAIR ANDERSON: From the transfer of the water.
MS. WILLENBRINK: "Having made application for the transfer of water service shall be held
liable for the water delivered from the date of the last recorded meter reading. The
proper application for transfer is not made, and if accumulated bills for water service are
not paid upon presentation, the water service may be discontinued five business days
after written notice is given to the consumer."
CHAIR ANDERSON: Okay. Any questions or comments in those sections? No problems?
Okay. Members, I think we're going to close our meeting for the day and try to fine tune
this for further discussion. Oh. I guess I never closed public testimony, but it's too late
now anyway. So, then at our next meeting we will have a couple other items to come up
on our agenda besides this. I'll try to get Staff and I to ... it seems to me that we need to
pull out those things that are in these rules and regulations that are really policy and focus
on that. And the how, and the wherefore, and the nitty gritty that's the administrative
rules, and I think we need to leave that up to the Department and not waste our time on
this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I agree.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Do I, I, do I get an agreement?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED THEIR AGREEMENT.
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CHAIR ANDERSON: I tried, Members, to get this to happen during the last term, but I didn't
have Staff available to do it. So, now that we have dedicated Staff hopefully we'll be
able to get that done. And, and I'm going to ask for assistance from Mr. Kushi and also
from Director Eng to see if we can't do that, because we have bigger fish to fry than
talking about who's in line when someone doesn't pay their bill. Okay. Members, are
we all in agreement. Thank you for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Oh, wait, Chair.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, I'm sorry, announcements.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: You going to close public testimony?
CHAIR ANDERSON: I guess I could, but it doesn't really matter since I'm closing the meeting.
Did you want to testify?
COUNCILMEMBERPONTANILLA: Oh, no, no, no . . . . (laughter) . .. But I think for the
record.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Yeah, for the record I'll close public testimony.
comments from the Department before we close?

Thank you.

Any

MR. ENG: Yes, I just have one comment before I forget is earlier in the meeting you questioned
about our Ag, Ag customers.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Oh, yeah. Yeah.
MR. ENG: I think the amount of consumption that they have. Just for some simple information
this is dated about a year ago. Of our total number of actual customers they represent
around 2 percent in numbers.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Of customers?
MR. ENG: Yeah. In, in amount, in the amount of water consumption they're about 8 percent of
our water. So, they were at about one billion gallons a year.
CHAIR ANDERSON: One billion gallons a year. Thank you for that, Director Eng, that's
helpful.
MR. ENG: You're welcome.
CHAIR ANDERSON: Just gives us a perspective. So, they are 2 percent of our customers and
8 percent of the overall use. Okay. Thank you for that. Appreciate it. Members, any
other comments? Okay. The meeting of the Water Resource Committee of February 26th
is now adjourned ... (gavel) . ..
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